

U.S. Department of Justice Executive Office for United States Attorneys

# United States Attorneys' Bulletin

Published by:

Executive Office for United States Attorneys, Washington, D.C. For the use of all U.S. Department of Justice Attorneys

VOL. 30

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
CLEARINGHOUSE	21
COMMENDATIONS	23
POINTS TO REMEMBER Economic Crime Enforcement Positions Cross Designation Program	25 26
CASENOTES CIVIL DIVISION Sixth Circuit Holds that the Social Security Administration's Medical-Vocational Regulations are both Valid under the Social Security Act and Constitutional Kirk v. Secretary of Health and Human Services	27
First Circuit Upholds Constitutionality and Validity of SSI Income Counting Regulation <u>Usher</u> v. <u>Schweiker</u>	28
Federal Employees: Supreme Court Rules Unanimously that Two Step-Increase Rule does not apply to Prevailing Rate Employees Promoted to GS Positions United States v. Clark	29
FOIA: D.C. Circuit Upholds Government's FOIA Exemption 7 Claims and Holds Government not Required to Obtain Information not in its Possession Founding Church of Scientology v. Donald Regan	30
Federal Employees: Second Circuit Holds that 1978 Federal Labor-Management Relations Act does not Preempt Injunctive Actions Based on 5 U.S.C. 7311 and Sustains \$4.5 Million Contempt Fine Against PATCO ATA v. PATCO	31
Administrative Law: Third Circuit Upholds Procedural Validity of HHS Rules Implementing the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act Amendments to the AFDC Program Philadelphia Citizens in Action v. Schweiker	33

II Vol. 30

ļ

### JANUARY 22, 1982

NO. 2

-

Page

Liability on SBA Loans: Fifth Circuit Upholds District Court Ruling that Unauthorized Misrepresentation by SBA Agents as to Obligation on a Promissory Note are not Binding on the Government United States v. R&D One Stop Records, Inc.	34
Class Actions: Sixth Circuit Holds Class Certification Improper and Reverses Judgment Entered Against Government in a Title VII Sex Discrimination Suit Holmes v. Bergland	35
Discovery Sanction: Seventh Circuit Affirms Dismissal of Suit Against Government Involving FBI "Sting" Operation as Sanction for Failure to Comply with Discovery Charter House Insurance Brokers, Ltd. v. New	
Hampshire Insurance Co. v. United States FOIA: Ninth Circuit Retroactively Applies Stafford v. Briggs to Find Lack of Personal Jurisdiction over Former CIA Officials Sued Individually Arthur Septon v. The Central Intelligence Agency	36 38
Food Stamp Program: Ninth Circuit Upholds Agriculture Regulation, in Part, for Recovery of Monies Cost Due to "Gross Negligence" of State or Local Agencies in Administration of Food Stamp Program State of California v. John R. Block	39
LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION National Environmental Policy Act; EIS on Felsenthal National Wildlife Refuge ruled Adequate Hogan v. <u>Brown</u>	41
Corps' Denial of Section 404 Permit Sustained <u>Smithwick</u> v. <u>Alexander</u>	41
Overflight Noise that Existed before Landowners Purchased Property not a Compensable Taking Joseph v. <u>Helms</u>	42

III NO. 2

Page

43

APPENDIX: FEDERAL RULES OF EVIDENCE These pages should be placed on permanent file, by Rule, in each United States Attorney's office library

LIST OF U. S. ATTORNEYS

49

#### CRIMINAL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General D. Lowell Jensen

#### CLEARINGHOUSE

United States v. Wilford, et al., F. Supp. \_\_\_\_, No. 81-10 (N.D. Iowa, December 10, 1981) D.J.# 156-27-44

On December 10, 1981, a Federal jury in Cedar Rapids, Iowa, convicted four officials of Teamsters Local 238 of conspiracy and extortion under the Hobbs Act, 18 U.S.C. 1951; receiving illegal payments from employers in violation of the Taft-Hartley labor laws, 29 U.S.C. 186(b)(1); and demanding and receiving unlawful unloading fees under 29 U.S.C. 186(b)(2). The trial was eight days in length and was conducted before the Honorable Edward J. McManus, Chief Judge of the Northern District of Iowa.

The defendants were Harry J. Wilford, secretary-treasurer of the Teamsters local in Cedar Rapids; Everett G. Dague and Herman J. Casten, business representatives of the local; and Herman Boeding, the union shop steward. The indictment charged the defendants with extorting union initiation fees and dues from independent, over the road truck drivers delivering materials to a construction site in Cedar Rapids during 1977 and 1978. It also charged defendants with demanding and receiving illegal unloading fees from the drivers as well as unlawful payments from employers. All four defendants were convicted of Hobbs Act conspiracy and Taft-Hartley misdemeanors. Three defendants were convicted of substantive Hobbs Act counts.

The case is noteworthy because it involves the application of Hobbs Act extortion to the wrongful use of fear of economic loss in a context where the property obtained by union officials was not for their personal benefit. It also is the only reported prosecution under the unloading fee statute, 29 U.S.C. 186(b)(2). The case culminates a three year nationwide investigation by the Federal Bureau of Investigation, involving over 30 divisions of the Bureau.

The case was prosecuted by Assistant United States Attorney Judi Whetstine and Randy Kehrli, a trial attorney of the Labor-Management Unit of Strike Force 18 in Washington, D.C.

(Criminal Division)

23

#### COMMENDATIONS

Attorneys JOAN AZRACK and SHERRI L. BERTHRONG, Fraud Section of Criminal Division, have been commended by Mr. John L. Hogan, Special Agent in Charge, Federal Bureau of Investigation, Philadelphia office, for the successful prosecution of the <u>United States</u> v. <u>James H. Crabtree</u> case involving a complex vending machine fraud.

Assistant United States Attorney ROBERT S. BREWER, JR., Central District of California, has been commended by Mr. John L. Martin, Chief, Internal Security Section, Criminal Division, for the successful espionage prosecution of Marian W. Zacharski in the case of United States v. Zacharski.

Assistant United States Attorney THOMAS T. COURIS, Eastern District of California, has been commended by Mr. Brian M. Bruh, Director, Defense Criminal Investigative Service of the Department of Defense, for his outstanding performance in the prosecution of <u>United States v. Wylie</u> which resulted in the conviction of four defendants on numerous charges involving fraud against the government by medical practitioners in the Civilian Health and Medical Program of the Uniform Services (CHAMPUS).

Assistant United States Attorney THEODORE S. GREENBERG, Eastern District of Virginia, has been commended by Mr. Lawrence Karl York, Special Agent in Charge, Federal Bureau of Investigation in Alexandria, Virginia, for his outstanding work in connection with a complex fraud investigation involving Bentley Vaughn Plummer, Chairman, Professional Capital Corporation.

Assistant United States Attorney JOHN R. HAILMAN, Northern District of Mississippi, has been commended by Major General Thomas B. Bruton, The Judge Advocate General, United States Air Force, for his extremely capable and excellent representation in <u>Baucom Janitorial Service, Inc</u>. v. <u>Vern</u> Orr dealing with a contract involving a pilot training program.

Assistant United States Attorney THEODORE WAI WU, Central District of California, has been commended by Mr. Lawrence J. Brady, Assistant Secretary for Trade Administration, U.S. Department of Commerce, for his work in the development and prosecution of two complex export cases: <u>Spawr Optical</u> <u>Research, Inc. and Werner J. Bruchhausen et al</u>. which focused wide attention on the problem of illegal strategic exports.

JANUARY 22, 1982

EXECUTIVE OFFICE FOR U. S. ATTORNEYS William P. Tyson, Director

#### POINTS TO REMEMBER

Economic Crime Enforcement Positions

Subject		Date
Economic Crime Enforcement Positions New York, Chicago, Boston and Denver	-	DEC 14 1981
		N T
™ All United States Attorneys/ Assistant United States Attorneys	From	D. Lowell Jensen Assistant Attorney General Criminal Division

The Criminal Division is redirecting the emphasis of the Economic Crime Enforcement Unit Program to focus more closely on fraud in the government benefit and procurement program. Toward that end we are seeking present and former federal prosecutors with a minimum of three years trial experience, some of which is in the fraud or corruption area, to fill the positions in New York, Chicago, Boston and Denver.

The redirection of the program is geared toward working more closely with the several Inspectors General on a regional basis to develop better government fraud and corruption cases throughout each region and assist the agencies to develop methods of fraud detection and prevention. The positions would involve some trial work, but the main emphasis is on servicing the needs of the Inspectors General on a regional basis.

Applications may be forwarded to or more information obtained from:

Donald Foster, Director Office of Economic Crime Enforcement Criminal Division 1032 Federal Triangle Building Washington, D.C. 20530 FTS - 724-7021

(Criminal Division)

١

NO. 2

#### Cross Designation Program

All United States Attorneys are reminded that requests for permission to accept an appointment as a special state/local prosecutor should be forwarded to the Executive Office for United States Attorneys for approval pursuant to 28 C.F.R. § 45.735-9. Likewise, the appointments of state/local prosecutors as Special Assistant United States Attorneys must be sent to the Executive Office for United States Attorneys for approval pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 543.

Your cooperation is earnestly sought. Not only do we need to process these appointments in order to comply with the statutory provisions, but we very much need to keep abreast of the extent and type of cases involving the cross-designation program.

Questions concerning the appointments of Special Assistant United States Attorneys should be addressed to Mr. Glen Stafford, FTS 633-2074. Questions concerning the acceptance of appointments as special state/local prosecutors should be addressed to Mr. Les Rowe, FTS 633-4024.

(Executive Office)

NO. 2

2

CIVIL DIVISION

Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

Kirk v. Secretary of Health and Human Services, etc., 6th Circuit Nos. 80-1535, etc. (December 8, 1981).

SIXTH CIRCUIT HOLDS THAT THE SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION'S MEDICAL-VOCATIONAL REGULATIONS ARE BOTH VALID UNDER THE SOCIAL SECURITY ACT AND CONSTITUTIONAL.

In a decision with broad ramifications for thousands of disability cases pending in federal courts, the United States Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit has ruled in four consolidated cases that the Social Security Administration's medical-vocational regulations are both valid under the Social Security Act and constitutional. The regulations became effective in February 1979 and govern more than one million initial, administrative decisions each year and approximately 200,000 decisions by administrative law judges. More than 8,000 suits are filed each year in the federal courts seeking to overturn agency determinations of nondisability. Preregulation case law in every circuit required the Secretary to support determinations of nondisability in most cases with the identification through testimony of vocational experts of specific jobs that claimants can perform. The medicalvocational regulations permit determinations through the use of tables or "grids" that direct conclusions on disability based on individualized classifications of medical condition, age, education, and work experience. In appropriate cases, determinations of nondisability under the regulations are not based on vocational testimony identifying specific jobs.

In a 30-page opinion, the Sixth Circuit held the regulations consistent with the Act and prior case law. The Court also held that the age classifications in the tables are valid under the Equal Protection Clause, and the regulations provide due process.

> Attorney: Anne Sobol (Civil Division) FTS (633-4214)

JANUARY 22, 1982

VOL. 30

28

#### CIVIL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

<u>Usher</u> v. <u>Schweiker</u>, First Circuit No. 81-1181 (December 4, 1981). D.J. # 137-36-482.

#### FIRST CIRCUIT UPHOLDS CONSTITUTIONALITY AND VALIDITY OF SSI INCOME COUNTING REGULATION.

In this case, the district court held unconstitutional, as applied to plaintiffs a Supplemental Security Income (SSI) regulation which counts a private rental subsidy as unearned income to the recipient. Pursuant to the regulation, the difference between the current market value of the recipient's accommodation and its actual rental value is counted as income, but in no case is the subsidy valued at more than one-third of the standard SSI payment.

The court of appeals rejected plaintiffs' argument that the rental subsidy was not "actually available" to them, holding that plaintiffs are receiving "real and tangible benefits." The court also noted that certain benefit discrepancies pointed out by plaintiffs resulted not from differential treatment by the regulations but rather from differences in the level of outside support given to the recipients. The court also held that the Congressional decision to exclude federal rental subsidies from countable income did not call into question the constitutionality of the regulation which counts private rental subsidies.

> Attorney: Carlene McIntyre (Civil Division) FTS (633-5459)

#### JANUARY 22, 1982

NO. 2

#### CIVIL DIVISION

#### Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

United States v. Clark, No. 80-1121 (January 12, 1982) D.J. #154-26-76

> FEDERAL EMPLOYEES: SUPREME COURT RULES UNANIMOUSLY THAT TWO STEP-INCREASE RULE DOES NOT APPLY TO PREVAILING RATE EMPLOYEES PROMOTED TO GS POSITIONS.

Plaintiffs had all held so-called "blue-collar" positions with the federal government under the prevailing wage rate (WS) system, and been promoted to higher paying positions in the general schedule (i.e., the GS system). In determining their salaries, the employing agency applied OPM's "highest previous rate rule," which effectively provides that an agency may pay an employee shifting from a WS to a GS position at the highest previous rate unless the converted wage falls between two GS pay rates (in which case the agency may elect which rate to pay). The Court of Claims held that the application of the highest previous rate rule to employees whose new GS positions could be termed "promotions" violated 5 U.S.C. 5334(b), which requires that an employee promoted to a higher GS grade must be paid at a rate which exceeds his previous salary by no less than two step increases.

On our petition, a unanimous Supreme Court has reversed and held that the two step-increase rule applies only to promotions within the GS system. The court agreed with our explanation that such promotions -- unlike changes of position between the GS and WS systems -- automatically entail an inherent increase in duties and responsibilities warranting a commensurate increase in salary. The decision emphasized that longstanding agency interpretations are entitled to deference, and reenforces the interpretative rule that Congress' failure to override or disapprove a longstanding regulation during subsequent amendments of the authorizing statute evidences the correctness of the agency's interpretation.

> Attorney: Mark H. Gallant and Frederick Cohen, formerly of the Appellate Staff FTS 633-4052

**YOL.** 30

#### CIVIL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

Founding Church of Scientology v. Donald Regan, et al. No. 80-1546 (D.C. Cir. December 31, 1981). D.J. 145-3-1522

FOIA	: D.C.	CIRC	CUIT UP	HOLDS	GOVERN	IMENT	'S	
FOIA	EXEMPTI	ION 7	7 CLAIM	IS AND	HOLDS	GOVE	RNMI	ENT
NOT	REQUIRED	) TO	OBTAIN	INFO	RMATION	I NOT	IN	ITS
POSS	ESSION.							

The Founding Church of Scientology brought this action against the National Central Bureau of Interpol

seeking disclosure of certain records under FOIA including confidential information from international police agencies. The information received from the agencies via Interpol, was withheld pursuant to Exemption 7(D). However, the district court required the NCB to release the requested information, reasoning that only persons, and not institutions, can be confidential sources within the meaning of 7(D) and that the government had not demonstrated that the information was collected in the context of a specific enforcement proceeding. In addition, the court required the NCB to obtain and index eight documents not in its possession which are presently in the files of Interpol in Paris.

The court of appeals reversed, holding that (1) law enforcement agencies are confidential sources within the meaning of Exemption 7(D), (2) the government is not required to demonstrate a pending enforcement proceeding in order to invoke Exemption 7(D), and (3) the district court lacks authority to require the government to retrieve and index documents which it once had but which are not presently in its possession.

> Attorney: Marleigh D. Dover Civil Division FTS 633-4820

#### JANUARY 22, 1982

**NO.**2

CIVIL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

ATA v. PATCO, No. 81-7447 (2d Cir. Dec. 12, 1981) D.J. 145-18-876

FEDERAL EMPLOYEES: SECOND CIRCUIT HOLDS
THAT 1978 FEDERAL LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS
ACT DOES NOT PREEMPT INJUNCTIVE ACTIONS BASED
ON 5 U.S.C. 7311 AND SUSTAINS \$4.5 MILLION
CONTEMPT FINE AGAINST PATCO

In 1970, the United States and the Air Transportation Association (ATA) obtained permanent antistrike injunctions against PATCO in the Eastern District of New York under 5 U.S.C. 7311, a statute prohibiting federal employees from engaging in strikes which has been invoked on a number of occasions to support an implied right of action for injunctive relief. In 1978 Congress enacted the Federal Labor-Management Relations Act, which established a comprehensive scheme for redressing unfair labor practices within the federal sector and vested broad enforcement powers in the Federal Labor-Management Relations Authority (FLRA), an independent agency whose role parallels that of the NLRB in the private sector. Before commencing the recent strike, PATCO moved in the Eastern District of New York to dismiss the outstanding injunction (which has for some years been maintained exclusively by ATA) on the ground that the 1978 Act conferred exclusive enforcement authority in the field on the FLRA and thus deprived the district court of its continuing jurisdiction over the previous injunction. The district

court denied relief without reaching the merits of PATCO's statutory argument, on the ground that PATCO had failed to meet the equitable standards for relief from judgment imposed by Rule 60(b)(5), Fed. R. Civ. P. Thereafter, the court imposed contempt fines totalling over \$4.5 million on the basis of the 1970 injunction.

32

CIVIL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

ATA v. PATCO, No. 81-7447 (2d Cir. Dec. 12, 1981) D.J. 145-18-876 (cont.)

The United States appeared as amicus curiae on PATCO's appeal from the order refusing to dismiss the injunction, and argued principally that the 1978 Act did not divest the district courts of their authority to entertain actions under § 7311. In a detailed opinion, the Second Circuit adopted our interpretation of the 1978 Act and our discussion of its legislative history, and sustained the orders below on the theory that the 1978 Act was intended to supplement rather than supersede the anti-strike remedies previously available to the United States under § 7311. This decision, coupled with a similar decision recently entered by the Seventh Circuit, should firmly establish the continuing right of the United States to proceed directly to district court, rather than seek relief through the FLRA, in the event of strikes by federal employees. (Mark H. Gallant)

> Attorney: Mark H. Gallant Civil Division FTS 633-4052

33 NO. 2

CIVIL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

Philadelphia Citizens in Action, et al. v. Schweiker, Nos. 812915, 812916, 812942, 3d Cir., Jan. 15, 1982, DJ. #145162083.

> ADMINISTRATIVE LAW: THIRD CIRCUIT UPHOLDS PROCEDURAL VALIDITY OF HHS RULES IMPLEMENTING THE OMNIBUS BUDGET RECONCILIATION ACT AMENDMENTS TO THE AFDC PROGRAM.

In this case arising under the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act, the district court held that the Secretary of HHS improperly dispensed with APA notice and comment procedures in issuing rules implementing amendments made by the Budget Act to the AFDC program. The district court enjoined operation of the changes to the AFDC program in Pennsylvania, pending promulgation of new rules under the notice and comment procedures. This order, after precipitating the filing of other similar lawsuits elsewhere, was stayed by the Third Circuit following expedited briefing and argument. On January 15, 1982 the Third Circuit reversed the district court's judgment. The court of appeals (per Judge Adams) held that the Secretary of HHS had "good cause" under the APA to dispense with notice and comment procedures in implementing a statute that was to be effective only 49 days after it was enacted. Judge Higginbotham dissented.

> Attorney: Michael Kimmel (Civil Division) FTS (633-5714)

NO. 2

#### CIVIL DIVISION

Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

United States v. R&D One Stop Records, Inc., No. 80-1474 (5th Cir., Nov. 16, 1981). D.J. 105-75-138

> LIABILITY ON SBA LOANS: FIFTH CIRCUIT UPHOLDS DISTRICT COURT RULING THAT UN-AUTHORIZED MISREPRESENTATION BY SBA AGENTS AS TO OBLIGATION ON A PROMISSORY NOTE ARE NOT BINDING ON THE GOVERNMENT.

R&D One Stop Records, Inc. executed and delivered to the SBA a promissory note in the principal sum of \$100,000, in consideration of a \$100,000 SBA loan made to it. The president of R&D and three other individuals, signed the Guaranty Agreement and thus jointly and severally unconditionally guaranteed the payment of the principal, interest, and all other sums due on the note. Upon default, the government sued R&D and the individual guarantors. While admitting their signatures on the guaranty agreement, the guarantors argued they were unaware of the nature of the agreement, which they believed was "only a formality." They contended that representatives of the SBA misrepresented the nature of the guaranty, indicating that no individual recourse against the guarantors was contemplated. The district court, without stating its findings of fact or law, granted summary judgment on the ground that no material issue of fact existed. Defendants' subsequent motion to amend the judgment was denied in an order which included findings that the government is not bound by the unauthorized actions of its agents.

On appeal, the Fifth Circuit reaffirmed the principle that misrepresentations by government (here SBA) agents do not constitute a defense of fraud or mistake, since the government is not bound by actions of its agents who exceed their scope of authority. The court also noted that the applicable SBA regulations prohibited the agents from making the alleged representations. Accordingly, factual disputes about the nature of the representations were held irrelevant and the government was entitled to summary judgment as a matter of law.

> Attorney: Russell L. Caplan Civil Division FTS 633-4331

#### JANUARY 22, 1982

. NO. 2

#### CIVIL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

Holmes v. Bergland, No. 80-1424 (6th Cir. Jan. 5, 1982). D.J. # 35-72-14.

> CLASS ACTIONS: SIXTH CIRCUIT HOLDS CLASS CERTIFICATION IMPROPER AND REVERSES JUDGMENT ENTERED AGAINST GOVERNMENT IN A TITLE VII SEX DISCRIMINATION SUIT.

In this Title VII sex discrimination suit, the district court ruled that the named plaintiff, who had been employed by the Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service of the Department of Agriculture for 11 months in Tennessee, failed to prove that her discharge was due to sex discrimination.

However, the district court certified a class to include applicants as well as employees, and held that a Civil Service Exam and travel and relocation requirements discriminated against women applicants for full-time employment. On appeal, we argued that the class was improperly certified and that, in any event, there was no discrimination in hiring. The Sixth Circuit in a per curiam order issued only three weeks after oral argument ruled that the class had been improperly certified because there was no common interest or nexus between the discharged employee's claim and the class of applicants she sought to represent.

> Attorney: John Hoyle, Trish Reeves, formerly of the Appellate Staff FTS (202) 633-3547

36

#### CIVIL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

Charter House Insurance Brokers, Ltd. v. New Hampshire Insurance Co. v. U.S., No. 80-2494 (7th Cir., Dec. 10, 1981). D.J. #157-23-1639.

> DISCOVERY SANCTION: SEVENTH CIRCUIT AFFIRMS DISMISSAL OF SUIT AGAINST GOVERNMENT INVOLVING FBI "STING" OPERATION AS SANCTION FOR FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH DISCOVERY.

This action arose from an FBI "sting" operation designed to ferret out criminal elements in the Chicago construction industry. The FBI arranged for the New Hampshire Insurance Company, a private firm, to act as a "front" and execute insurance bonds, some of which were issued to a suspected brokerage house, Charter House. The intermediary hired for the operation as a go-between to introduce FBI agents to purported criminal figures began issuing forged bonds in NHIC's name. Upon disavowal of the unauthorized bonds by NHIC, Charter House sued NHIC for damages in excess of \$40,000,000 due to the worthless bonds it found itself dealing with, which circumstance allegedly caused Charter House to lose a great deal of business for its brokerage services. The government later agreed to be impleaded as a third-party defendant and in effect indemnity NHIC for any losses it sustained in the project. Had the case reached a decision on the merits, it might well have presented a question of first impression concerning the extent of the privilege accorded to a private firm (as opposed to an individual), which cooperated with law enforcement agencies.

However, for a year Charter House was unresponsive to our discovery relating to its business practices and clientele though it produced a small amount of documents. The district court granted our motion to dimiss as a sanction under F.R. Civ. P. 37(d). The court gave plaintiff a second chance by issuing an order stating that its dismissal would be vacated in 45 days if the magistrate certified to the court that all

NO. 2

CIVIL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

Charter House Insurance Brokers, Ltd. v. New Hampshire Insurance Co. v. U.S. (cont.)

documents were turned over to NHIC and the government. Despite plaintiffs' affidavits, the court concluded that Charter House produced too little, too late, and had deliberately withheld a significant number of relevant documents and dismissed the suit.

On appeal, Charter House argued <u>inter</u> <u>alia</u> that the withheld documents were missing or otherwise exempt from discovery, but failed to explain why it had not so informed NHIC previously or filed objections. It also argued that it disobeyed no court order compelling discovery, since the court never issued such an order. We argued that though no such order explicitly compelling discovery was issued, nevertheless the 45-day deadline was the functional equivalent of one since Charter House thereby knew the consequences of its further inaction. The Seventh Circuit summarily affirmed dismissal of the suit.

> Attorney: Russell Caplan (Civil Division) FTS (633-4331)

NO. 2

VOL. 30

Civil Division Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

Arthur Septon v. The Central Intelligence Agency, et al., No. 80-3389 (9th Cir., Nov. 27, 1981). D.J. #157-82-806.

#### FOIA: NINTH CIRCUIT RETROACTIVELY APPLIES STAFFORD V. BRIGGS TO FIND LACK OF PERSONAL JURISDICTION OVER FORMER CIA OFFICIALS SUED INDIVIDUALLY.

In one of the first decisions applying Stafford v. Briggs, 444 U.S. 527 (1980), the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals held that a former CIA employee's claims for personal injury against former CIA officials, including William Colby and Stansfield Turner, sued individually, were properly dismissed because the district court lacked personal jurisdiction over the individual defendants. Pursuant to Stafford v. Briggs, supra, the court of appeals held, that 28 U.S.C. 1391(e) cannot be relied upon to obtain jurisdiction in actions for money damages brought against either former or present federal officials in their individual capacities. Citing Bradley v. Richmond School Board, 416 U.S. 696 (1974), the court of appeals further held that no manifest injustice would result from the retrospective application of the Stafford interpretation of Section 1391(e) to this case. The Ninth Circuit's decision will be helpful in future suits against individual officials where personal jurisdiction is grounded on Section 1391(e).

> Attorney: Susan Herdina (Civil Division) FTS 633-4552

#### JANUARY 22, 1982

NO. 2

39

CIVIL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

<u>State of California v. John R. Block</u>, <u>No. 78-3645</u> (9th Cir. Nov. 18, 1981). D.J. No. 147-11-96

FOOD STAMP PROGRAM: NINTH CIRCUIT UPHOLDS AGRICULTURE REGULATION, IN PART, FOR RECOVERY OF MONIES COST DUE TO "GROSS NEGLIGENCE" OF STATE OR LOCAL AGENCIES IN ADMINISTRATION OF FOOD STAMP PROGRAM.

California sued the Secretary of Agriculture for injunctive and declaratory relief to prevent him from seeking to recover almost \$1,000,000 from the State, which he claimed was due because he found "gross negligence" in the administration of the Food Stamp Program in two California counties. The district court granted summary judgment for the State, holding that the regulation under which the Secretary found "gross negligence" exceeded his statutory authority.

On appeal, the Ninth Circuit reversed, in part, and remanded. It noted the Secretary's broad authority under the Food Stamp Act and reiterated "that the regulation need only be reasonably related to the purposes of the enabling legislation to be upheld." Thus, it upheld that part of 7 C.F.R. 271.6(a) (appendix to 7 C.F.R. § 276 (1980)) which defined "gross negligence" to include State actions concerning food stamp eligibility certification and issuance which might not be grossly negligent in themselves, but which continue to result in substantial losses, after prior admonition and time for correction. The court found invalid that part of the regulation which included "substantial noncompliance" in the definition of gross negligence, since the Act specifies termination of distribution for "substantial noncompliance." 7 U.S.C. 2019(f). On remand, the district court is to review the Secretary's determination on the basis of the valid portion of the regulation.

> Attorney: Al Daniel (Civil Division) FTS (633-4820)

LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION Assistant Attorney General Carol E. Dinkins

Hogan v. Brown, F.2d , No. 81-1350 (8th Cir., December 10, 1981) DJ 90-1-4-1844 and 90-1-4-1872.

National Environmental Policy Act; EIS on Felsenthal National Wildlife Refuge ruled adequate.

Plaintiff landowners sued to enjoin Felsenthal National Wildlife Refuge project, alleging that the EISs prepared in connection with the project were inadequate under NEPA. The central feature of the refuge is a five-foot deep seasonal fish and wildlife pool. Following a trial the district court found that the EISs satisfied the procedural requirements of NEPA and dismissed plaintiffs complaints. See 507 F.Supp. 191 (W.D. Ark. 1981). The court of appeals, in a per curiam decision, affirmed, for the reason that the district court's findings were not clearly erroneous.

> Attorneys: Thomas H. Pacheco and Anne S. Almy (Land and Natural Resources Division) FTS 633-2767/4427

<u>Smithwick</u> v. <u>Alexander</u>, F.2d \_\_\_\_, No. 81-1464 (4th Cir., December 15, 1981) DJ 62-54-44.

Corps' denial of Section 404 permit sustained.

The court of appeals, in a four page <u>per curiam</u> decision, affirmed the district court's decision granting the government summary judgment in a challenge to the Army Corps of Engineers' denial of a Section 404 permit. The landowner had contended that denial of the permit, which he needed to develop a residential subdivision on wetlands near Belleville, North Carolina, was arbitrary and capricious. He also contended that the Corps had no jurisdiction over his property because it did not include wetlands and he sought just compensation for inverse condemnation of his property. The court held that the Corps did not act improperly in classifying the property as a wetland or in denying the permit and it found the taking claim lacking merit.

> Attorneys: Edward J. Shawaker and Thomas L. Riesenberg (Land and Natural Resources Division) FTS 633-2813.

JANUARY 22, 1982

Joseph v. Helms, F.2d No. 81-1276 (D.C. Cir., December 16, 1981) DJ 3-31-81.

Overflight noise that existed before landowners purchased property not a compensable taking.

The appellants, who own property on Foxhall Road in Washington, D.C., near a flight path to Washington National Airport, claimed that the noise from overflights had "taken" their property and they sought compensaation of \$9,999. The district court granted summary judgment on the ground that even if there had been a taking, the appellants could not qualify for compensation because any arguable avigation easement in the airspace above their land existed before they acquired the property. The landowners had also contended in the district court that the noise form overflights had significantly increased since they purchased their property, but they offered no evidence to support this contention. The court of appeals, in a two-page memorandum decision, affirmed the judgment of the district court.

> Attorneys: Thomas L. Klarquist

Thomas L. Riesenberg and Robert L. Klarquist (Land and Natural Resources Division) FTS 633-4519/2731

VOL. 30

42

#### January 22, 1982

#### VOL. 30

#### Federal Rules of Evidence

## Rule 104(a). Preliminary Questions. Questions of admissibility generally.

- Rule 104(b). Preliminary Questions. Relevancy conditioned on fact.
- Rule 801(d)(2)(E). Definitions. Statements which are not hearsay. Admission by party-opponent.

Defendant properly objected to the admission of a coconspirator's statement as hearsay. The court failed to make a specific finding that the Government had established by a preponderance of the evidence that: (1) the conspiracy existed; (2) the declarant and the defendant were members of the conspiracy; and (3) the statement was made during the course of and in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Rules 104(a) and (b) and 801(d)(2)(E) require a showing by the Government and a specific finding by the trial court of the three facts described above prior to the admission of the statement into evidence. See United States v. Ronald K. Petersen, et al., 611 F.2d 1313 (10th Cir. 1979), as reported at 28 USAB 445 (No. 13; 6/20/80). The Court held that a trial court cannot avoid its responsibility to make such a finding on the ground that the defendant did not request it.

(Reversed and remanded. Dissent filed.)

United States v. Joseph F. Radeker, \_\_\_\_ F.2d \_\_\_, No. 79-2139 (10th Cir. November 16, 1981)

#### January 22, 1982

#### Federal Rules of Evidence

Rule 104(b). Preliminary Questions. Relevancy conditioned on fact.

See Rule 104(a), this issue of the Bulletin for syllabus.

United States v. Joseph F. Radeker, \_\_\_\_ F.2d \_\_\_, No. 79-2139 (10th Cir. November 16, 1981)

VOL. 30

#### January 22, 1982

#### Federal Rules of Evidence

Rule 801(d)(2)(E). Definitions. Statements which are not hearsay. Admission by party-opponent.

See Rule 104(a), this issue of the Bulletin for syllabus.

United States v. Joseph F. Radeker, F.2d , No. 79-2139 (10th Cir. November 16, 1981)

•

.

#### UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS

DISTRICT	U.S. ATTORNEY
Alabama, N	Frank W. Donaldson
Alabama, M	John C. Bell
Alabama, S	J. B. Sessions, III
Alaska	Michael R. Spaan
Arizona	A. Melvin McDonald
Arkansas, E	George W. Proctor
Arkansas, W	Larry R. McCord
California, N	Joseph P. Russoniello
California, E	Donald B. Ayer
California, C	Stephen S. Trott
California, S	William H. Kennedy
Canal Zone	Frank J. Violanti
Colorado	Robert N. Miller
Connecticut	Alan H. Nevas
Delaware	Joseph J. Farnan, Jr.
District of Columbia	Charles F. C. Ruff
Florida, N	Nickolas P. Geeker
Florida, M	Gary L. Betz
Florida, S	Atlee W. Wampler, III
Georgia, N	James E. Baker
Georgia, M	Joe D. Whitley
Georgia, S	Hinton R. Pierce
Guam	David T. Wood
Hawaii	Wallace W. Weatherwax
Idaho	Guy G. Hurlbutt
Illinois, N	Dan K. Webb
Illinois, S	James R. Burgess, Jr.
Illinois, C	Gerald D. Fines
Indiana, N	R. Lawrence Steele, Jr.
Indiana, S	Sarah Evans Barker
Iowa, N	James H. Reynolds
Iowa, S	Kermit B. Anderson
Kansas	Jim J. Marquez
Kentucky, E	Louis G. DeFalaise
Kentucky, W	Ronald E. Meredith
Louisiana, E	John Volz
Louisiana, M	Stanford O. Bardwell, Jr.
Louisiana, W	Joseph S. Cage
Maine	Richard S. Cohen
Maryland	J. Fredrick Motz
Massachusetts	William F. Weld
Michigan, E	Leonard R. Gilman
Michigan, W	John A. Smietanka
Minnesota	James M. Rosenbaum
Mississippi, N	Glen H. Davidson
Mississippi, S	George L. Phillips
Missouri, E	Thomas E. Dittmeier
Missouri, W	Robert G. Ulrich

۰.

**.**....

### JANUARY 22, 1982

### UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS

#### DISTRICT

#### U.S. ATTORNEY

Montana	Byron H. Dunbar
Nebraska	Ronald D. Lahners
Nevada	Lamond R. Mills
New Hampshire	W. Stephen Thayer, III
-	W. Hunt Dumont
New Jersey	
New Mexico	Don J. Svet
New York, N	George H. Lowe
New York, S	John S. Martin, Jr.
New York, E	Edward R. Korman
New York, W	Roger P. Williams
North Carolina, E	Samuel T. Currin
North Carolina, M	Kenneth W. McAllister
North Carolina, W	Charles R. Brewer
North Dakota	Rodney S. Webb
Ohio, N	James R. Williams
Ohio, S	Christopher K. Barnes
Oklahoma, N	Francis A. Keating, II
Oklahoma, E	Betty O. Williams
Oklahoma, W	John E. Green
Oregon	Sidney I. Lezak
Pennsylvania, E	Peter F. Vaira, Jr.
Pennsylvania, M	Carlon M. O'Malley, Jr.
Pennsylvania, W	J. Alan Johnson
Puerto Rico	Raymond L. Acosta
Rhode Island	Lincoln C. Almond
South Carolina	Henry D. McMaster
South Dakota	Philip N. Hogen
Tennessee, E	John W. Gill, Jr.
Tennessee, M	Joe B. Brown
Tennessee, W	W. Hickman Ewing, Jr.
Texas, N	James A. Rolfe
	Daniel K. Hedges
Texas, S Texas, F	Robert J. Wortham
Texas, E	Edward C. Prado
Texas, W	Brent D. Ward
Utah	
Vermont	George W.F. Cook
Virgin Islands	Ishmael A. Meyers
Virginia, E	Elsie L. Munsell
Virginia, W	John P. Alderman
Washington, E	John E. Lamp
Washington, W	Gene S. Anderson
West Virginia, N	William A. Kolibash
West Virginia, S	David A. Faber
Wisconsin, E	Joseph P. Stadtmueller
Wisconsin, W	John R. Byrnes
Wyoming	Richard A. Stacy
North Mariana Islands	David T. Wood

NO. 2

.